
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

**** SMALL COURTROOM, SECOND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
May 6, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook 

Page. 

 

1. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES      

DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     

DISTRICT 4 – ASHER GRAY     

DISTRICT 5 - STEVEN LEDFORD, VICE-CHAIR     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 1 

         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 

         

 V.      Consent Agenda –  

1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- April 1, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- April 19, 2024 

 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     70785- 71056 

 

VI.   Public Hearings with Business Action 

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as 

rezoning, ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the 

County Commissioners.  Following the public hearing. The Board of Commissioners will act on 

each item presented below.  
 

Public Hearing 1: Ordinance Amendment to Sec 119-244 Development Standards- AG and RES 
Districts 
Business Item 1: Ordinance Amendment to Sec 119-244 Development Standards- AG and RES 
Districts 
 
Public Hearing 2: Ordinance Amendment to Sec. 105-28 and 105-162 General Definitions and 
Subdivision Design. 
Business Item 2: Ordinance Amendment to Sec. 105-28 and 105-162 General Definitions and 
Subdivision Design 
 
Public Hearing 3: Ordinance Amendment - Short Term Rentals 
Business Item 3: Ordinance Amendment - Short Term Rentals 

 



XIII. Executive Session 

 

 
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more 

than ten (10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or 

other events by the Commissioners.  
 

 

 

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the 

Commission 

for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  

Please  

be courteous of the 3-minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County 

FB Page. 

IX. County Commissioner Items & Updates 

 

X.   Regular Agenda  

 

Business Items: 

4. Short Term Rentals Non-Refundable Application Fee and License Fee 
5. Appointment to Development Authority of Jasper County Board 
6. Appointment to Board of Assessors 
7. Appointment to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board 
8. 2024 Bear Creek Marina Alcohol License Renewal 
9. 2024 Sac-O-Suds Alcohol New License Application  
10. Janitorial Services Bid Results  
11. Pest Control Services Bid Results  
12. Bid Results – Sale and Removal of House Only at 811 Eatonton St 
13. Bid Results – Truck Mounted Pothole Patching Machine 
14. GDOT Local Road Assistance Administration Funds Application – Projects 
15. Sign Ordinance – Section 111-34 – Exceptions to Permit Process – Political Signs 
16. FY 2024 3rd Quarter Financial Report 
17. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by 
O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-
3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as 
provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  
 

XIV. Adjournment  

 
 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  May 6, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 

 
 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- April 1, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- April 19, 2024 

 
Background: 

 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve minutes for:  

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- April 1, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- April 19, 2024 

 
  



  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

April 1, 2024 

       Regular Meeting Minutes 

         6:00 P.M. 

 
Chairman Bruce Henry called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman; Steven Ledford, Vice Chair; Don Jernigan; Sheila 
Jones and Asher Gray  
 
Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Clerk- Administrative Services Director, 
Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting Officer, Doug Attaway- Planning and Zoning Director,  
Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: Commissioner Ledford, District 5 
 

Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda:  

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve the following minutes:  
 

• Work Session Minutes- February 26, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- March 6, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- March 13, 2024 

 

Commissioner Gray seconded the motion, passed unanimously.      

 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Check #s 70574-70784. Commissioner Jernigan 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously. 
 

Public Hearings: None 
 

Citizen Comments:   

Rob Alexander spoke in favor of the county purchasing an RA-400 Pothole Patcher truck. Mr. 
Alexander stated that it is a one-man operated truck and he watched as a Putnam County employee 
used the same type truck. He said it took approximately 10 minutes to fix the hole and move to the 
next one. Mr. Alexander suggested the county give serious consideration to purchasing one, maybe 
two if possible.  

County Commissioner's Items  

Commissioner Jernigan- Spoke in favor of purchasing RA-400 Truck. Commissioner Jernigan said that 
he and Public Works Director Michael Walsh went to Walton County to see theirs in action. He said 
that the county really needs one. He said it does a fantastic job and he hopes to get the purchase of one 
approved.  

 

Commissioner Jones- None 

Commissioner Ledford- None 

Commissioner Gray- None 

Commissioner Henry- None 
Business Items: 

Item 1: Appointment to Development Authority of Jasper County Board: 



Roy Kelly and Steve Jordan seeking reappointment, and Michelle Coward seeking appointment.  
Michelle Coward was not able to attend the April 1st BOC meeting.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to table the appointment for Michelle Coward until the May 6th 
meeting. Commissioner Gray seconded motion passed unanimously.  
 
Roy Kelly stated that he has served on the board for several years as a non-voting member and four 
years as a voting member. Mr. Kelly said he would like to serve one more term is hopes of helping 
to bring industries to the area and add jobs. Commissioner Gray asked what kind of industry he want 
to bring to the area and if Mr. Kelly was familiar with the Jasper County Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Mr. Kelly said he was some-what familiar with the plan and it is the intention of DAJC members to 
adhere to that plan while bringing in industries.  Mr. Kelly said that he would like to see clean 
industries that will enhance the community by adding jobs. He said they have to look at each business 
separately case by case.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to appoint Roy Kelly to the Development Authority of Jasper 
County. Commissioner Ledford seconded, motion passed unanimously.  
  
Steve Jordan stated he has served on the board for several years and would like to serve one more 
term to help David Dyer continue to bring industry and jobs to Jasper County. Commissioner Gray 
asked Mr. Jordan to elaborate on things that are currently in the works with the DAJC. Mr. Jordan 
said he would not because of non-disclosure agreements. He said that such agreements prevent 
members from discussing deals until complete. He said the board always adheres to Jasper County 
Comprehensive Plan in everything thing they pursue. Commissioner Gray said that Mr. Jordan has 
served on the board for many years and he wanted to know if he believed in term limits. 
 
Mr. Jordan asked if the Board of Commissioners had term limits. He said that setting term limits for 
boards was the responsibility of the Board of Commissioners. Mr. Jordan also said that he would like 
to see more people get involved especially young people, but there just doesn’t seem to be an interest. 
Mr. Jordan said that he is one of three people who applied for three openings on the board. Mr. Jordan 
said he would like to see new members bring new ideas, but he doesn’t feel like he is out of idea just 
because of his age. He said that the older board members don’t believe they have all the answers, but 
they are not stale either. Mr. Jordan said he understands the need for limits he just feels like he and 
other member have accomplished a lot in his time on the board. He said he serves on the board for 
the Bank of Monticello and they have term limits. He is not against term limits at all. Mr. Jordan said 
he feels he still has things to offer.  
 
Commissioner Gray then asked if the DAJC had funds in the Bank of Monticello. Mr. Jordan said 
absolutely not that is a conflict of interest and I would never do something like that. 
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to appoint Steve Jordan to the Development Authority of Jasper 
County Board. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledford. Motion passed4-1, Commissioner 
Gray opposed. 
 

Item 2: Appointment to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board:    Jennifer Allen seeking 
reappointment to the board. Mrs. Allen said the she feels they have a good working board and try not 
to be to lenient of the ordinances. She said there are times when it is necessary. Commissioner Ledford 
asked if this would be her second term and Mrs. Allen said yes it would be her second term. 
 



Commissioner Ledford motioned to appoint Jennifer Allen to the Planning and Zoning Appeals 
Board. Commissioner Jernigan seconded motion, motion passed unanimously. Jennifer’s term will 
expire July 2026 
 
Cyndi Johns seeking appointment but was not in attendance. Commissioner Jernigan made a motion 
to table appointment until May 6th meeting. Commissioner Gray seconded motion, motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 Item 3: Appointment to Recreation Board:  Rachelle Stanionis, Ashley Henderson, and Melissa 
Strozier all applying for the Recreation Board. Rachelle Stanionis was not in attendance.  
 
Ashley Henderson told the Board of Commissioner’s that he is passionate about helping kids develop 
their skills and becoming the best they can be. He said the he wants to see kids become whatever they 
want in life and have a good time learning skills. Mr. Henderson said his interest in becoming a board 
member is not just because he is the Head Football Coach at the high school but also because he has 
three young children who are very active at the Recreation Department. He said that he would like to 
help have clinics and camps to help kids in our community learn proper skills for playing sports at a 
higher level in the future. Mr. Henderson said the camps he is hoping to have would be free for 
children in the community. He said it is his goal to create an environment that will not only develop 
strong players for future wins but also be a better experience in general. 
 
Commissioner Gray stated that stated that the county would eventually like to expand the recreation 
department. He asked Mr. Henderson what his thoughts are on getting the school system in involve 
in a joint effort to build a larger shared facility.  
 
Mr. Henderson said that are several opportunities the he knows about that the recreation department 
could benefit from. He mentioned 3rd party organization such as Atlanta Falcons and programs they 
offer. He said that we are a small community and if everyone is on board with a larger shared facility 
he sees no reason why it couldn’t work. Mr. Henderson said we have a lot of land and a lot of kids 
and the recreation department is the feeder system for the schools.  He believes that getting coaches 
involved to teach techniques used in the schools for each sport is important.  
 
Melissa Strozier Stated that she is interested in serving on the Recreation Board because she wants 
to help kids in our community. Mrs. Strozier said that she disagrees with making a joint facility for 
the schools and the county recreation department. She said that it would cause issues and children 
playing for the recreation department would be placed last to use the facilities. She said that she has 
seen it happen in areas and its unfair. Younger should have a separate facility.  
 
Commissioner Jones said she would recuse herself from voting as she serves on the Recreation Board 
and feels it is a conflict of interest.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to appoint Ashley Henderson to the recreation board.  
Commissioner Gray seconded, Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Item 4: Appointment to Public Facilities Authority Board:   Howard Fore is currently a member 
of the Public Facilities Authority and wishes to continue serve. Mr. Fore said he has enjoyed 
serving and it has been an eye-opening experience. 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to reappoint Mr. Fore to the Public Facilities Authority, 
Commissioner Jernigan seconded, motion passed unanimously. 
 

Item 5: Capital Expenditure Request – RA-400 Truck Mounted Road Pothole Patcher:  



Steve Young with Reynolds One spoke about the pothole patching truck. He stated that the truck is a 
one-man operation and it is possible to repair as many as two hundred potholes in a day. Mr. Young 
said there would be routine maintenance required on the hydraulics and greasing the fittings.  Mr. 
Young said the company will provide training at time of delivery of truck. The truck uses an emulsion 
tank that is compatible with what the county currently has. Mr. Young said this is a permanent fix 
not just a band aid that will have to be redone in a few months. 
 
Commissioner Jernigan said that we currently have six employees working on potholes. This machine 
will allow for five of those employees to work on others project. Commissioner Jernigan Motioned 
to use 2018 SPLOST balance and ARPA funds to purchase the new Pothole Patcher truck  
 
Other County Commissioners had several questions and concerns.  Commissioner Gray asked if it 
would be better to save the money until the county could afford to pave roads instead of just patch?  
Commissioner Gray asked why the current patching machine could not be used year-round if it was 
basically the same type of operation. Commissioner Gray also asked if it could be bid out with other 
companies.  Commissioner Jones asked if Mr. Walsh had an employee in mind to operate the truck 
and a backup driver.  
 
Commissioner Ledford asked if the operator would be required to have a CDL? Commissioner 
Ledford asked Public Works Director if he felt this would be a purchase that benefits the county? 
Chairman Henry said this is a major and expensive purchase. He asked if it would be the only item 
Public Works would need to get county project done for the new budget year. 
 
Public Works Director Michael Walsh stated that the purchase of this machine is a no brainer for him. 
He said this machine is very efficient and would be used almost daily. He said the only time he could 
see it not being used would due to weather conditions. Mr. Walsh said the machine does the same 
thing as the machines the county currently has but its more efficient. Public Works receives one 
complaint after the other and they are unable to repair and maintain roads properly and timely with 
the current machine. He said they spend days getting it to run, fix a few potholes and return to the 
garage to fix something else. Mr. Walsh said they spend days working on the machine for it run a 
short while before it must be worked on again. He said the current machine does not have that same 
type of heater as the newer machine so in colder weather it cannot be used.  They can’t keep up with 
road maintenance when they are always working on the machine and cold packing potholes is very 
temporary, it will only last a few weeks. Mr. Walsh said he has an employee in mind to operate the 
new machine if purchased. He said the gentleman is very responsible and takes pride in his work. He 
said he would have a backup operated trained so there was never a time when they would not be able 
to operate the machine, due to employee being absent. Mr. Walsh said after seeing the one in Walton 
County he very confident a new machine would last for several years he said 15 years at least. He 
said the one in Walton County is thirteen years old and is in great condition and has a long life left. 
 
County Manager Mike Benton said that the bid for the machine was from Sourcewell. He said the 
price given for the machine is a good price. Sourcewell is a company that has already don’t the 
research for the best competitive price on products to save time for government and other non-profit 
organizations. Mr. Benton said that paving road will not eliminate the need to patch and repair 
potholes. We can not pave roads fast enough so there will always be a need for constant repair work 
Mr. Benton said. 
 
Chairman Henry called for a second to Commissioner Jernigan’s motion.  
 
Commissioner Ledford said that he feels more discussion is needed and motioned to table, 
Commissioner Gray seconded motion to table, motion passed unanimously with Commissioner 



Jernigan saying he was reluctantly voting. He believes delaying the purchase will possibly cost the 
county more money. 
 

Item 6: Request for Senior Center Improvements- Parking Lot Surface, Stormwater Drainage 

and Back Lot Grade:   Chairman Henry said that after he met with Senior Center Director Brenda 
Jacobs about her concerns he spoke to the company working at the jail about preparing a bid for the 
Senior Center. He is hoping it will save money since they are side by side and the equipment is already 
in place. Chairman Henry agreed that the work is necessary and told Mrs. Jacobs if grading was 
needed she would need to contact Robert Jordan. Mrs. Jacobs said it is her goal to make the Senior 
Center a safe environment while utilizing all the property around it. She said she would like to have 
the back yard graded to create a safe area for games and exercise with a trail for walking. Mrs. Jacobs 
said the back yard is not safe as it is. Mrs. Jacobs met with Mr. Jordan and he was going to prepare 
three set of plans and three bids. She is still waiting to hear back from him. County Manager Mike 
Benton said that Mr. Jordan has been working on the bids. He stated the stormwater drainage is the 
most serious of the issues and Mr. Jordan has that bid prepared. Chairman Henry said the 
Commissioner need to see that bid to get the ball rolling. Mrs. Jacobs also mentioned the windows 
being sealed closed and it being a hazard. She said Fire Chief Chris Finch was there to look at them, 
but she hasn’t heard back from him. Chairman Henry said he would reach to the Fire chief. 
 

Item 7: 2024 LMIG - Wild Rd Bids: Pittman Construction was the lowest bidder for this project. 
The county engineer recommended using Pittman to resurface Wild Rd. County Manager Mike 
Benton said the pricing fits the budget for this project. He said the money for the new SPLOST should 
be available by the time this project is scheduled to begin. 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to award the 2024 LMIG Project to Pittman Construction. 
Commissioner Jernigan seconded motion.  
 
Commissioner Gray stated he does not normally like to go with the lowest bid. Chairman Henry stated 
the county has used Pittman several time and never had and issue. Mr. Benton said that he understands 
Commissioner Gray but on the other side of that the county has used one of the other bidding 
companies who had a higher bid and had several issues with them.  
 
Chairman Henry called for a vote motion passed unanimously  
 

Item 8: Sands Drive Park Pavilion Bids: County Manager Mike Benton recommended The Trezz 
Group to build Sands Park Pavilion. He said they are the low bidder, and they are local, they just 
completed the new dugouts for the recreation department. Mr. Benton said funding for this project 
will come from impact fees. Commissioner Jones asked if The Trezz Group builds Pavilions. Mr. 
Benton said the do all sorts of projects, but their main business is building commercial airport hangers 
all over the country. Chairman Henry said they need to move forward with this project, but they 
would need updated pricing for accessories such as picnic tables and benches. 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to award Sands Park Pavilion shelter project to The Trezz Group 
with a request for updated accessory pricing, Commissioner Gray seconded motion, motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

Item 9: GDOT Local Road Assistance Administration Funds: County Manager Mike Benton 
explained that the state has a new program to help with county road repairs. LRA funds for Jasper 
County would be $801,261.06 with no county match required. The county will need to list in detail 
the road or roads the county intends to repair with LRA funds. Commissioner Gray asked if funds 
could possibly be used to purchase equipment to repair roads such as the Patching Truck. Mr. Benton 
said he believed so, but he would need to do some research to be sure.  



 
Commissioner Gray motioned LRA project funds be used for purchasing the Patching Machine and 
repaving Whip-Poor-Will Rd. pending answer as to what the funds can be used for. Commissioner 
Jernigan seconded motion, motion passed unanimously.  
 
If funds cannot be used for equipment Public Works Director Michael Walsh will supply a list of 
roads in need of repaving for Commissioners to review.   
 

Item 10: Support Letter for Northeast Georgia Regional Commission’s Request for FY 2025 
Congressional Funding: NEGRC is asking Chairman Bruce Henry to sign a letter in support of their 
organization. They will send the letter to Washington to request Federal funding to repair their 
building. They have request that the Commissioners add a section describing what they have done 
that has benefitted Jasper County. The NEGRC help with our Comprehensive Plan, redistricting, and 
wrote letters to help get two CDBG grants.  
 
Commissioner Ledford said NEGRC has done a lot to help our county and he made a motion for 
Chairman Henry to sign the requested letter with additions. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the 
motion, motion passed unanimously. 
 

Item 11: Free C&D Material Tipping for Jasper County Residents – Discussion: Commissioner 
Jernigan said he has received several calls and emails from citizens asking for free dump month. 
Public Works Director Michael Walsh said the EPD is strictly enforcing C&D only. Mr. Walsh said 
the county currently only has 4 containers for all other items and they fill up quickly. Mr. Walsh said 
there is a posted list of accepted items. Mr. Walsh stated in the past citizens either did not know about 
or simply ignored guidelines and dumped everything together.  At that point the county is stuck with 
it. Mr. Walsh stressed that it must be separated and dumped in correct locations. 
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to have free dump month in May for C&D only. Commissioner 
Ledford said he would prefer to wait until they have a better plan in place to prevent crowding and 
overflowing Containers. Chairman Henry agreed that they needed a better plan. Commissioner Gray 
seconded motion passed three to two (Henry & opposed). 
 

Item 12: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

County Managed Mike Benton said that there is a work session scheduled for April 19th for budget 
discussion and can add items if needed. Chairman Henry asked about the short-term rentals and the 
plan to have it finalized before Memorial Day. Mr. Benton said they must give at least a 30 days’ 
notice of the Public Hearing so is will run in the paper. He has it set for May 6th Meeting with plan 
for action from county commissioners. 

County Attorney Items: None 

County Manager Update: County Manager Mike Benton gave updates on building permits and 
completed road work. Mr. Benton said he is still waiting for numbers from ACCG to give update on 
the county employee retirement plan. He met with the Tax Assessor and the digest is now complete 
so drafting to new budget will begin March 26th- April 12th. Budget daft will be presented at April 
19th work session. 

Executive Session: Chairman Henry requested an executive session to discuss real estate. 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned for executive session to discuss real estate, Commissioner 
Ledford second. Motion for work session passed unanimously. 



Adjourn: Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn at 8:34. Commissioner 
Jernigan seconded motion, Motion passed unanimously. 

___________________________                                                  __________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman                                                                  Sheila Belcher, Clerk                

 
 



  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

April 19, 2024 

Budget Work Session Minutes 

9:00 A.M. 
 
 
Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry -Chairman, Steven Ledford -Vice Chairman, Don Jernigan, and 
Asher Gray. 
Staff Present:  Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Administrative Services Director, 
Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting Officer.  

 
Work Session: 

1. FY 2025 Budget: 

Mike Benton discussed the digest summary. He stated that tax collection is around 97%. 
 
Staff was instructed to investigate whether we should collect the energy excise tax from additional 
energy providers. 
 
Larissa Ruark presented the preliminary proposed budget for the Finance Department.  
 
Sheila Belcher presented the preliminary proposed budget for the HR Department 
 
The board was presented with proposed budgets from all other departments. 
 
Magistrates projected revenue was lowered to $2,500.  
 
The Work Session was closed at 12:07 p.m. 
 
 

___________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman 
 
 

___________________________ 

Sheila Belcher, Clerk 

  



 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: May 6, 2024 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
 

Summary: 

 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and 
approval to process the checks. 
 
Background: 

 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 

 
Approve processing of check #’s 70785- 71056 

 
  



Public Hearing – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Ordinance Amendment to Sec 119-244 Development Standards- AG and RES Districts.  
   
 
 
Summary:  

Planning and Zoning board held two public hearings on Sec 119-244 development standards in AG 
and RES. The planning and zoning board brings forth the following recommendations to the Board 
of Commissioners 119-244 development standards in AG and RES districts. Minimum heated floor 
area in RES zoning. Minimum lot sizes in RES zoning. Minimum road fronting and lot width in AG 
and RES Zoning. Minimum front yard set back minor collector and local road. 
 

 

 
 
 
Background:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  



 

Draft ordinance 

Proposed Changes are in RED font 

Sec. 119-244. - Development standards – Agricultural and residential districts.  Note R-R is being 
removed and added into AG 

Item AG RES 

Minimum heated floor area per dwelling 1,200 s.f. 1,500 s.f. 

Minimum lot area without public water or sewer 5 acres 5 acres 

Minimum lot area with public/private water * 5 acres 5 acres 

Minimum lot area with public/private water and sewer* 5 acres 5 acres 

Minimum lot area conservation design subdivision N/A 3 Acres 

Minimum lot width 300 ft 200 ft 

Minimum road frontage 300 ft 200 ft 

Minimum front yard/setback arterial road 80 ft 80 ft 

Minimum front yard/setback major collector road 80 ft 80 ft 

Minimum front yard/setback minor collector road 80 ft 80 ft 

Minimum front yard/setback local road 80 ft 80 ft 

Minimum side yard 30 ft 30 ft 

Minimum rear yard** 50 ft 50 ft 

Compliance with architectural standards required No No 

 

N/A – Not allowed 

* Water and sewage must meet approval of the county health department 

** Rear yards that adjoin Jackson Lake will be measured from Georgia power easement 525 
feet seal level plus 50 feet 

 

1 

Draft Ordinance Amendment 

Public Hearing May 6, 2024 



Business Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing #1 
 
 
Summary:  Ordinance amendment to Sec 119-244 Development standards- AG and RES Districts 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 



Public Hearing – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Ordinance Amendment to Sec. 105-28 and 105-162 General Definitions and Subdivision 
Design. 
   
 
 
Summary:  

Planning and Zoning board held two public hearings on Sec. 105-28 and 105-62 General definitions 
and subdivision designs. The planning and zoning board brings forth the following 
recommendations to the Board of Commissioners Sec. 105-28 and 105-162. Removing 
conservation design subdivisions in AG zoning districts. Amending lot size in table 105-162 (c) (3).  
Amending buffer requirements in 105-162 (c) (4). 
 

 

 
 
 
Background:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  



 

Draft ordinance 

Proposed Changes are in RED font 

 

Sec. 105-28. -General definitions. 

Subdivision. 

(1)  The term "subdivision" means the division of a parcel of land that is a lot of record at the 
time of enactment of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived into three or more 
lots, building sites, or other divisions, at least one of which is smaller than five acres, for 
the purpose—whether immediate or future—of sale, legacy, or building development. This 
definition includes all of the following:       

a. All divisions of land involving a new street.                                                                                            

b. All divisions of land involving a substantial change in existing streets.                              

c. Any resubdivision of land into three or more lots if any lot is smaller than five acres.  

(2)  The term "subdivision" does not include the following:    

            a. The combination or recombination of portions of previously platted lots where the total 
number of lots is not increased and the resultant lots are equal to the standards set forth in 
this chapter.  

b. The transfer of unsubdivided land or the transfer of a lot or parcel of land established by 
deed or plat recorded in the office of the clerk of the superior court of the county prior to 
the initial effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived. 

c. The division of land among heirs by judicial decree. 

d.The division of land into parcels of five or more acres where no new road is involved. 

(3)  All residential subdivisions in zoning district RES, other than minor plats as defined, shall 
comply with the provisions indicated in chapter 105, article VI, Conservation Subdivisions. 

  

1 

Draft Ordinance Amendment 

Public Hearing May 6, 2024 

 

 



Draft ordinance 

Proposed Changes are in RED font 

Sec. 105-162. - Conservation subdivision design. 

(a) Purposes. The purposes of conservation subdivisions are as follows: 

(1)  To provide flexibility of design in order to promote environmentally sensitive 
and efficient uses of the land when developing as a residential subdivision.            

(2)  To preserve in perpetuity unique or sensitive natural resources such as 
groundwater, floodplains, wetlands, streams, steep slopes, woodlands and 
wildlife habitat. 

(3)  To preserve important historic and archaeological sites.  

(4)  To permit clustering of houses and structures on less environmentally 
sensitive soils which will reduce the amount of infrastructure, including 
paved surfaces and utility easements, necessary for residential 
development. 

(5)  To reduce erosion and sedimentation by minimizing land disturbance and 
removal of vegetation in residential development.  

(6)  To promote interconnected greenways and corridors throughout the 
community. 

(7)  To promote contiguous green space with adjacent jurisdictions. 

(8)  To encourage street designs that reduces traffic speed and reliance on 
main arteries. 

(9)  To promote construction of convenient landscaped walking trails and bike 
paths both within the subdivision and connected to neighboring 
communities and businesses.  

(10)  To conserve scenic views and reduce perceived density by maximizing the 
number of houses with direct access to and views of open space.  

 

 

 

2 

Draft Ordinance Amendment 

Public Hearing May 6, 2024 

 

 

 

 



Draft ordinance 

Proposed Changes are in RED font 
 

(11)  To protect prime agricultural land and preserve farming as an economic 
activity.  

(b) Applicability.  

This district is to be used to preserve conservation space and to                           
protect natural resources. For properties which are submitted for a 
conservation subdivision, the applicant shall declare the intent to preserve 
conservation space at the time of application. The application shall be 
accompanied by an existing features site analysis plan, and a map that 
clearly indicates what is found on site according to the existing features site 
analysis plan. The conservation district shall not be used on property that 
has been timber harvested within seven years prior to adoption filing an 
application for a conservation subdivision. 

(c) General regulations. 

(1)  Applicability of regulations. The conservation subdivision option is available 
as a use by right in RES zoning districts. An applicant shall comply with all 
other provisions of this chapter, chapter 119 and all other applicable laws, 
except those that are incompatible with the provisions contained herein. 
Where there is any conflict in language, these regulations shall supersede. 

(2) Ownership of development site. The tract(s) of land to be subdivided may 
be      held in single and separate ownership or in multiple ownership. If 
held in multiple ownership, however, the site shall be developed according 
to a single plan with common authority and common responsibility. 

(3)       Housing density determination. The housing density determination will be       
determined by subtracting all the roads and right-of-way, required exterior 
buffers, and all conservation areas, and meeting the minimum lot size for 
each new lot as shown in the chart below: 

Zoning District RES 
Lot Size 5 Acre 

Minimum Lot Size Allowed 3 Acre 
 

 

3 

Draft Ordinance Amendment 

Public Hearing May 6, 2024 

 



Draft ordinance 

Proposed Changes are in RED font 

(4) Required buffers. 

a. A 50-foot undisturbed buffer shall be maintained around the perimeter of 
the subdivision adjoining outside parcels. This shall be counted toward the 
total required greenspace. 

b. A 100-foot natural buffer shall be maintained adjacent to existing public 
county streets and a 150-foot natural buffer along all state routes that abut 
the subdivision, this should be counted toward total required greenspace. 

c. A undisturbed buffer of not less than 50 feet at rear property line that is 
outside the buildable lot.  

   (d) Application requirements. 

  (1)  Site analysis map required. Concurrent with the submission of a site 
concept    plan, the applicant shall prepare and submit a site analysis map. 
The purpose of the site analysis map is to ensure that the important site 
features have been adequately identified prior to the creation of the site 
design, and that the proposed open space will meet the requirements of 
this article. The preliminary site plan shall include the following features: 

a. Property boundaries; 

b. All streams, rivers, lakes, wetlands and other hydrologic features; 

c. Topographic contours of no less than ten-foot intervals; 

d. All primary and secondary conservation areas labeled by type, as                                              
described in section 105-162(e), Open space; 

e. General vegetation characteristics; 

f. General soil types; 

g. The planned location of protected open space;  

4 

Draft Ordinance Amendment 

Public Hearing May 6, 2024 

 

 

 



 

Business Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing #2 
 
 
Summary:  Ordinance amendment to Sec. 105-28 and 105-162 General Definitions and 
Subdivision design. 
 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 



Public Hearing – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Ordinance Amendment - Short Term Rentals.   
 
 
Summary:  

Planning and Zoning board held two public hearings on Short term rentals. The planning and 
zoning board brings forth the following recommendations to the Board of Commissioners.  Adding 
an ordinance to regulate Short term rentals.  
 

 

 
 
 
Background:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  



Draft Ordinance 

BOC Meeting May, 6 2024 

 

Sec. 8-30. Short term vacation rental license. 

(a) For the purposes of this chapter, a short term vacation rental is defined as the renting or leasing of a single-

family dwelling unit, not including a guest house, recreational vehicle or boarding house, where the term of 

occupancy, possession, or tenancy is 30 consecutive calendar days or less. Renting or leasing, as used herein, 

means the payment of compensation, money, rent, or other, bargained for consideration in exchange for 

occupancy, possession, or use of the property.  

(b) No person or entity shall rent, lease or otherwise exchange for compensation all or any portion of a dwelling 

unit as short term vacation rental without first obtaining a short term rental license pursuant to the 

regulations contained in this article.  

(c) Any license issued pursuant to this article shall be valid for a term of one calendar year starting April 1 and 

expiring on March 31 of the next year.   

(d) No licensee shall transfer the right to operate under any license issued under this chapter to any other 

person or entity by lease, agreement, or any other contract.  

(e) No license issued under this article may be operated or shall have any legal effect at any location other than 

that for which it is issued.  

(f) The maximum day or night occupancy for any license issued pursuant to this article shall be two persons of 

any age per bedroom plus two additional persons of any age per residence, but no rental unit shall have a 

maximum occupancy greater than 12.  

 (g) Nothing in this chapter shall be deemed to alter, affect, supersede or conflict with the requirements of any 

state or federal law, the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, or any applicable private covenants or third-

party contractual obligations regarding the prohibition or limitation of the use of any residential property as 

a short term vacation rental unit.  

(h) Prior to issuance of any license pursuant to this chapter, an applicant must be in compliance with all 

applicable requirements under federal, state, and/or county ordinances. Compliance with state and county 

statute and ordinances shall specifically include the requirement that the applicant or business of the 

applicant is not delinquent in the payment of any tax or fee owed the county, including, but not limited to, 

personal or real property taxes, any occupational taxes, sales and use taxes, or payment for any required 

permit necessary for operation of applicant's business. For purposes of this section, any tax that has been 

paid, formally appealed to the proper authorities, or is being paid pursuant to a plan authorized and 

approved by the appropriate tax or revenue commissioner shall not be deemed delinquent.  

(i) Prior to issuance of any license pursuant to this chapter, an applicant must have the following inspections 

performed on the dwelling. The Jasper County Fire Chief or their designee shall inspect and certify the home 

for compliance of 2018 NFPA 101 and IFC 2018. The Jasper County Building official shall inspect and certify 

the habitable areas in accordance with 2018 IRC. Additionally, the Jasper County Health department will 

inspect and certify that the septic system meets or exceeds the state requirements for the homes occupancy 

as determined by the Jasper county Fire Chief or their designee. 

 

Draft Ordinance 

1 



(j) The application process, management, and enforcement of the issuance and regulation of short term 

vacation rentals shall be the responsibility of the planning and zoning director, or their designee.  

Sec. 8-31. Short term vacation rental overlay license limitation. 

(a) No license shall be issued unless and until the applicant provides sufficient evidence that the subject 

single-family dwelling unit was operated as a short term vacation rental prior to July 10, 2023.  Such 

evidence may include the following: proof of payment and remittance of hotel-motel tax, records 

reflecting rental of the subject property, advertisement or marketing materials, or any other relevant 

evidence.  Evidence in support of the same shall be submitted by the applicant with the license 

application. 

 

(b) There is imposed a limitation of no more than 30 short term vacation rental licenses.  In the event 

that any license is revoked pursuant to this chapter, a license is not renewed, or a license is 

surrendered after sale and/or transfer of the property, the total number of allowed licenses shall be 

reduced by such revocation, non-renewal, or sale/transfer. 

 

Sec. 8-32. Short term vacation rental regulations. 

Any and all holders of any licenses issued pursuant to this article shall abide by the following regulations:  

(a) Licensees shall not allow occupants to violate any federal, state, or local law, statute, rule or 

ordinances, including, and shall maintain compliance with all requirements regarding the appointed 

short term vacation rental agent.  

(b) All marketing and advertising of the licensed premises shall include the prominent display of the 

number of the license issued pursuant to this chapter, and such license number shall be prominently 

displayed on the exterior of the premises and visible from the road on the licensed premises. All 

marketing and advertising shall include notification of the maximum occupancy and maximum 

numbers of vehicles allowed.  

(c) A licensee may retain a managing agency, managing agent, operator, representative or local contact 

person to comply with the requirements of this section, including without limitation, the licensing of 

the short term vacation rental, the management of the short term vacation rental and the compliance 

with the conditions of this license. The owner of the short term vacation rental is responsible for 

compliance with the provisions of this section and the failure of an agent, representative, or local 

contact person to comply with this section shall be deemed noncompliance by the owner.  

(d)  Each licensee shall designate a short term vacation rental agent who must reside in Jasper County and 

has access and authority to assume management of the short term vacation rental unit. The licensee 

may be designated as the short term vacation rental agent. The name of the property owner and the 

short term vacation rental agent shall, along with their email addresses and telephone numbers at 

which the agent may be reached on a 24-hour, seven days a week, basis must be displayed with the 

short term rental license. The short term vacation rental agent shall be required to respond to the 

location of the short term rental within one hour after being notified of the existence of a violation of 

this chapter or any other provision of this Code, or any disturbance requiring immediate remedy or 

abatement. A licensee must immediately notify the planning and zoning director, or their designee, in 

writing upon a change of short term vacation rental agent or any change in such agent's contact 

information, and such notification will be through forms prescribed by the planning and zoning director 

within five days of any change in agent or contact information. 

Draft Ordinance 

2 



(e) A copy of a valid short term rental license shall be posted in a conspicuous location inside the main 

entrance of the short term rental and shall be presented by the owner, agent, renter, or occupant of 

the premises when requested by the sheriff, any deputy sheriff, fire marshal or official, or code 

enforcement officer. The contact information for the short rental vacation rental license holder and 

agent, if applicable, must be prominently displayed within the premises at all times.  

(f) The licensee must furnish the renter of the property a copy of the ordinance from which this article is 

derived and a contract specifying the terms of the rental which will include the maximum number of 

persons allowed on the premises at any time. Said contract will also specify the maximum number of 

vehicles allowed on the property at any time during the rental period. Said contract will further 

prescribe the maximum number of boats or vessels that may be docked or moored on any body of 

water adjacent to the short term vacation rental unit. The property owner, agent, or occupant of the 

short term vacation rental, when requested to do so, will, present a copy of the rental contract to the 

sheriff, any deputy sheriff, fire marshal or official, or code enforcement officer.  

(g) The maximum day or night occupancy for any license issued pursuant to this article shall be two 

persons of any age per bedroom plus two additional persons of any age per residence, but no rental 

unit shall have a maximum occupancy greater than 12. 

(h) The presence of more people on the premises of a short term vacation rental than the maximum 

number specified in the rental contract shall be a violation of this article and the person(s) named in 

the rental contract shall be subject to being cited for said violation. The sheriff, any deputy sheriff, fire 

marshal or official, or code enforcement officer may order the excess numbers of persons to vacate the 

premises and any person refusing to do so shall be subject to arrest and prosecution for disorderly 

conduct as provided for in section 18-56 of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances.  

(i) It shall be unlawful for any occupant of a short term vacation rental to make, continue or cause to be 

made or continued any excessive, unnecessary, or unusually loud noise which disturbs the peace or 

quiet of anyone in the neighborhood or which causes discomfort or annoyance to any reasonable 

person of normal sensitiveness. All electronic devices with speakers, including televisions, radios and 

stereo systems must be operated within the enclosed confines of the primary residence between the 

hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. The frequent or continuous barking, or other means of 

communication by animals that disturbs the comfort or repose of the residents of any residential 

neighborhood shall not be allowed.  

(j) The minimum age of the person signing the rental agreement is 25 and such person shall be 

responsible for adherence to all regulations in this section by all occupants staying at the short term 

vacation rental. The person signing the rental agreement shall be required to be present at the short 

term vacation rental within one hour upon request by the sheriff, any deputy sheriff, fire marshal or 

official, or code enforcement officer during the rental period.  

(k) No vehicles shall be parked on any public or private right-of-way and all parking shall be consistent with 

the parking plan submitted with the license application. The parking plan, which shall be approved as 

part of licensure, shall be sufficient to allow adequate parking for the maximum occupancy of the 

rental unit. No person occupying a short term vacation rental shall park any vehicle illegally on any 

street or road, nor park adjacent to any such street in a manner that would prevent or hinder any 

emergency vehicle from traveling thereupon. No person occupying a short term vacation rental shall 

park on any other person's property, or block any driveway of any other person or property owner 

without permission to do so. No occupant of a short term vacation rental shall be allowed to bring a 

boat, vessel, personal watercraft, atv or side by side to the short term rental. The sheriff, any deputy 

sheriff, or code enforcement officer may impound any vehicle found parking in such a manner. 

 

Draft Ordinance 

3 



(l) The presence of more vehicles on the premises of a short term vacation rental, or boats, vessels or 

personal watercraft docked or moored on a body of water specified in the rental contract shall be a 

violation of this article and the person(s) named in the rental contract shall be subject to being cited for 

said violation. The sheriff, any deputy sheriff, or code enforcement officer may order the owners or 

operators of the excess number of vehicles, boats vessels or personal watercraft to remove them from 

the property and any person refusing to do may be cited for violating this article. The sheriff, any 

deputy sheriff, or code enforcement officer may further impound the excess vehicles, boats, vessels or 

personal watercraft that are not removed upon a request to do so.  

(m) No renter shall go upon any adjacent properties or the common areas of the neighborhood community 

unless specifically authorized in advance and in writing by the owner of the short term vacation rental 

property.  

(n) No accessory structures or recreational vehicles shall be used for any overnight occupancy.  

(o) Any and all pets present at the premises must be leashed or contained at all times.  

(p) The premises may not be utilized for any special event, as defined by this Code, and there shall be no 

admission charged by the renter for access to the premises.  

(q) No renter shall be allowed to sublet the premises or any rooms during rental.  

(r) No renter shall be allowed to place, site, or occupy any recreational vehicles or campers on the 

premises during rental.  

(s) All external lighting shall be directed within the parcel and shall not be allowed to impact adjacent 

properties.  

(t) All garbage and trash must be stored in a trash container or appropriate receptacle and shall not be 

placed within or adjacent to any private or public right-of-way for a period of time greater than 24 

hours.  

(u) An interconnected and hard-wired smoke detection and notification system, with battery backup, is 

required and must be operable and in good working order at all times.  

(v) Subject to state law, the use of fireworks is prohibited at all short term vacation rentals.  

(w) No licensee or person occupying a short term vacation rental shall engage in any behavior on the 

premises on the rental property that constitutes a violation of chapter 18 of the Jasper County Code of 

Ordinances 

Sec. 8-33. Short term vacation rental application. 

Applicants shall submit, on an annual basis, an application for a short term vacation rental license to 

the director of planning and zoning. Such application shall include:  

(a) The name, address, telephone and email address of the owner(s) of record of the dwelling unit for 

which a license is sought;  

(b) The address of the dwelling unit to be used as a short term vacation rental;  

(c) The name, address, telephone number and email address of the short term vacation rental agent, 

which shall constitute his or her 24-hour contact information, and who shall be at least 25 years old, 

and shall be able to be present onsite within one hour of contact;  

 

Draft Ordinance 

4 

 



(d) The owner's sworn acknowledgement that he or she has received a copy of this section, has reviewed 

it and understands its requirements; 

(e) The number and location of parking spaces allotted to the premises and site plan indicating designated 

parking areas;  

(f) The owner's agreement to use his or her best efforts to assure that use of the premises by short term 

vacation rental occupants will not disrupt the neighborhood, and will not interfere with the rights of 

neighboring property owners to the quiet enjoyment of their properties and will abide by all other 

short term vacation rental regulations, and will abide by any and all other regulations established by 

this Code.  

(g) Any other information that this article requires the owner to provide to the county as part of an 

application for a short term vacation rental permit. The director of planning and zoning, or their 

designee, shall have the authority to obtain additional information from the applicant as necessary to 

achieve the objectives of this chapter.  

(h) If the rental agent changes, the property owner shall notify the county within five business days.  

(i) Application and license fees shall be as established by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners.  

 

Sec. 8-34. Citations for violations; revocation of license; penalty. 

(a) To ensure the continued application of the intent and purpose of this chapter, the planning 

department, through available code enforcement officers or the sheriff through his/her deputies, shall 

notify the holder of a short term vacation rental license of all instances in which acts or omission of the 

owner, agent, or any individual results in a citation for a code violation or other legal infraction. 

Citations may be served upon the short term vacation rental owner, rental agent, or any individual 

violating the provisions of this article. Each individual code violation, regardless of whether citation for 

such violation is served collectively with any other violation, and each day or instance of a violation, 

shall be treated as a separate and independent violation.  

(b) The planning department shall maintain in each short term vacation rental location file a record of all 

code violation charges, founded accusations and convictions occurring at or relating to a short term 

vacation rental unit. When a license holder has accumulated three violations for a particular property 

the county shall revoke any issued license and reject all applications for license.  

(c) If a short term vacation rental applicant has been cited and found to be in violation of any zoning, 

building, health or life safety code provision, the owner must demonstrate compliance with the 

applicable code prior to being eligible to receive a short term vacation rental license.  

(d) Citations for any of this article shall be heard in the same fashion as other violations of this Code. In 

addition to the available fines, a court of competent jurisdiction may impose any other available 

remedy and may suspend the subject license for one violation for the remainder of the license term, 

regardless of whether the subject property had previously been subject to a violation.  

 

 

 

 

Draft Ordinance 

5 

 



(e) Violations of this chapter shall be punishable by a minimum fine of $250 not to exceed $1,000.00 

and/or six months confinement in the Jasper County Jail and shall be subject to the following 

suspensions: 

(1)  Second violation:  Minimum fine $500 not to exceed $1000 and a 30 days suspension of license.  

 

(2) Third violation: $1000 fine and revocation of license pursuant to subsection (b).  

(f) Nothing in this section shall limit the county from enforcement of its Code, state or federal law by any 

other legal remedy available to the county. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit or 

supplant the power of any county inspector, deputy marshal or other duly empowered officer under 

the county's ordinances, rules and regulations and the authority granted under state law, as amended, 

to take necessary action, consistent with the law, to protect the public from property which constitutes 

a public nuisance or to abate a nuisance by any other lawful means of proceedings.  

 

Sec. 8-35. Appeal. 

(a) A person aggrieved by the county's denial of a short term vacation rental license may appeal the 

decision to the board of commissioners. The appeal must be filed with the county manager's office in 

writing, within 15 calendar days after the adverse action and it shall contain a concise statement of the 

reasons for the appeal.  

(b) The board of commissioners shall consider the appeal within 45 days after receipt by the county 

manager of a request unless otherwise agreed in writing by the county and aggrieved party. All 

interested parties shall have the right to be represented by counsel, to present testimony and 

evidence, and to cross-examine witnesses. The board of commissioners shall render a determination, 

which will constitute a final ruling on the application.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft Ordinance 

6 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Business Item 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing #3 
 
 
Summary:  Ordinance amendment; Short term rentals 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

  



Business Item 4: 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Short Term Rentals Non Refundable Application Fee and License Fee. 
   
 
 
Summary:  Short term rental ordinance requires nonrefundable application and license fees to be 
established by Jasper County Board of Commissioners. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

  



Short term Rental application fee and license to be determined by 

Board of Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

Projected costs to Jasper County: 

 

Fire Inspection:    $150.00 

Septic System Inspection: $150.00 

Newspaper Ad times 2 weeks: $108.00 

Building Inspection:  $100.00 



Business Item 5: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  BOC 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Appointment to Development Authority of Jasper County Board 
   
 
 
Summary:  

The Development Authority of Jasper County (DAJC) has one term that will expire in May.  
Jasper County BOC Staff advertised for interested parties to serve on the DAJC Board. 
 

The following have submitted applications for appointment: 

 
Michelle Coward 
 
Background:  

The Development Authority of Jasper County has a seven member board appointed by the Jasper 
County BOC. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

  







Business Item 6: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Tax Assessor 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Appointment to Board of Assessors 
   
 
 
Summary:  

The term for Position 3, currently held by Lionel Taylor is expiring on May 30, 2024. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

Lionel Taylor was first appointed to the Board in 2020. This would be his second term serving. He 
has expressed interest in continuing to serve.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  Meetings and education are budgeted 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 
  









Business Item 7: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Appointment to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board 
   
 
 
Summary:  

Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals has one expired term, March 1, 2024. We have received one 
application for appointment: 
 

• Mary Patrick  
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

The Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals appointees serve  3-year terms.  
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

  



JASPER COUN'rY BOARB OF COMMISSIONERS

\16 W. Greene Si. Ste. !8. Monliccilo. GA 31064

706.468-4900

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS, COMMITTEES, & AUTHORITIES

tyjAi^y wvnci Home Phone;Name:

Address: 3^01 A j A

/^) 0 a1 Tl CCt-L-O. -Ag-A 3 I CJ

Work Phone;

Cell Phone:

i±aiU_L3b/'WOf A- |.-V1 J ^ p ^ J
E-mail:Occupation:

I would like to apply for appointment to the following Board, Committee, or Authority:

2-VA C 'c

How long have you been a resident of Jasper County?

Which Jasper County district do you live in?

(5)0) (2) (3)

What qualifications, experience, and certifications do you possess that should be considered for

the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?
LA—i~o l<- qaCE-X- MAyG $ 4j/Aj \ 0'~vfA-1?

go Gv c.a-7 I o^m e ^ td I -C

Apeytnrcurrently serving on another Board, Committee, Authority or elected position?
Yes-^ NO If Yes, please list.

\ ^ 'C
A0 c ii. c-o rjcx A'uco u> 0' Ac o -i c

Yes C No )Have you, since the age of 18, ever been convicted of a felony?

If YES, please use the space below to briefly describe the nature of the crime(s), the date and place of
conviction and the legal disposition of the case. Jasper County will not deny employment to any
applicant solely because the person has been convicted of a crime. The County, however, may
consider the nature, date and circumstances of the offense as well as whether the offense is relevant

to the duties of the position applied.



Would there be any possible conflict of interest between your employment or your family, and your
serving on the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?

NO^ If Yes, please explain.Yes

What is your vision for the county’s future in relation to the Board, Committee, or
Authority you are seeking appointment on?
Tl\-c &or\-\2yO

S C f 1 LQ/ 7" 'Kx AA^ \z.r^-^aTT

A'i MvJciY A-'X (SUATo i?-i^ c f {'3<DC.^s: ● D>(● tfxW
i\4 tAcT «

Explain your understanding of the duties of this Board, Committee, or Authority:

[-0 A O ( A/ A-s/t-CX

^'>c\r-iOT

I

PCo ce "Ic i3(Jt(XDi <r. j

S c I'l A A T vS A c s: A vAGkvj 11 AC M t tJ V i -

Briefly explain why you seek appointment to this Board, Committee, or Authority:
rH'ix ^ Ti'l-r- M tr AV

4 u'( 1/Ac'Y^'.''j
L\J O

fb\e. Lu^hAT QOAuirtC-X ,A.:r A f-7 Ao M ur2^ Oil U t A

Are you in any way related to a County Elected Official or County Employee? If so, please describe.

Ai

If appointed, I agree to serve and participate in required and or voluntaty training^ ( No

LMO r ^

Slgnatiu^ Application Date

' l liis application should be submitted to the .lasper County Board of Commissioners, Altii:
Any additional information may be included on a separate page.

NOTE: Information provided on this form is subject to disclosure as a public record under Georgia
Open Records Law.



Business Item 8: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: 2024 Bear Creek Marina Alcohol License Renewal 
   
 
 
Summary:   Bear Creek Marina - Application number 2024-A-010 located at 62 Bear Creek 
Marina Rd, Mansfield, GA 30055. Name of applicant Don Wright- Retail license for beer and wine. 
– Renewal  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background: Bear Creek Marina has completed and passed updated criminal background checks 
with no infractions and there have been no complaint calls to 911 relating to alcohol.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Boards discretion 

  



Business Item 9: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: 2024 Sac-O-Suds Alcohol New License Application  
   
 
 
Summary:  Sac-O-Suds Application number 2024-A-008 Located at 54 Hwy 16 W Monticello, 
GA 31064. Name of Applicant Urmi A Raikar- Retail License for beer and wine – New License 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

  



Alcoholic Beverage

License Application
232791

Amount Paid
$0.00

Applicant
Urmi

Created
March 13, 2024

Number
232791

Sac o suds |
Submitted by Sacosuds54 on

3/13/2024

Applicant
Urmi

7345060686

Sacosuds54@gmail.com

Parcel search  Completed On Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 5:54 PM EDT by Sacosuds54

ParcelID Address City OwnerName Acres

031 005 54 HWY 16 W SEAN HWY 16 PROPERTIES LLC 2.040

Introduction to Alcohol License  Completed On Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 5:54 PM EDT by Sacosuds54





Powered by Esri

Thank you for being part of the Jasper County business community. We welcome the opportunity to assist you in applying for and/or
renewing an Alcoholic Beverage License. Here are some important reminders to help you e�ciently register and annually renew your
license.

Applicant: 
Must pass a yearly criminal background check for the state of Georgia. Please contact the Jasper County Sheriff’s o�ce immediately
upon receipt of renewal to schedule your criminal background.

Important: If the licensee is different from the previous year, you must start the application process over as the license are speci�c to
the holder.

Application Process: 
All applicants seeking a license in Jasper County must �rst complete the application process with the State of Georgia. Please
complete the State of Georgia application before beginning Jasper County application. Link: State of Georgia Alcohol Licensing

Once the State of Georgia application is complete, you can then register with the Jasper County, Georgia. Once all administrative,
investigative and permit fees are paid to the County, the application for Alcoholic Beverage License will be advertised in the local
newspaper once a week for two weeks prior to the week when the application will be heard by the County Commissioners. County
Commission meetings for renewal will be held annually in December.

-83.83069, 33.30695

tel:7345060686
mailto:Sacosuds54@gmail.com
http://www.esri.com/
https://dor.georgia.gov/alcohol-tobacco/alcohol-licenses-permits/alcohol-licensing


Application Questions  Completed On Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 6:01 PM EDT by Sacosuds54

Tax Reporting:
Taxes are due on or before the 10th of each month. You are responsible for the timely submittal of your excise taxes. Taxes are due
from both wholesalers and retailers. Failure to timely submit excise taxes will be result in late fees being assessed against remitter.
Penalties for noncompliance include �nes and possible revocation of license. Reporting must be sent in for all alcoholic beverages
purchased from wholesalers.

Renewal of License: 
All licenses shall expire on December 31 of the issue year. The County Clerk or his/her representative will notify license holder on or
before November 1st.

Ready to Begin? 
Check the box below to verify you've completed the State of Georgia Alcohol License. Then click NEXT to begin the Jasper County
Alcohol Licensing application. 

I have completed the State of Georgia Alcohol License.

Yes

Business Name

Sac o suds

Phone

4702512301

Corporation Name

U r me llc

Business Location

54 HWY 16 W

Mailing Address

54 hwy 16 w

Mailing Address City

Monticello

Mailing Address State

Ga

Mailing Address Zip

31064

Applicant's Full Name

Urmi a raikar



Retail License  Completed On Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 6:01 PM EDT by Sacosuds54

Sign and Submit  Completed On Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 6:03 PM EDT by Sacosuds54

O�ce Noti�cation Email  Completed On Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 6:03 PM EDT by Sacosuds54

Date of Birth

06/06/1986

GA Sales Tax #

308953873

Home Address

1408 holly springs rd marietta ga 

Type of License

New

This is a License for

Retail

License Use

Beer and Wine Retail

NOTE: 
Before signing this application, check all answers and explanations to see that you have answered All questions fully and correctly. This
application is to be executed under oath and subject to the penalties for false swearing, and it includes all attached sheets submitted
herewith. Licensee understands that any license issued pursuant to this application is conditioned upon the truth of the answers and
statements made herein and that any false answers and statements herein shall constitute cause for the suspension or revocation of
any license issued pursuant to this application.

I do solemnly swear subject to criminal penalties for false swearing, that the statements and answers made by me to the foregoing
questions in this application are true and no false or fraudulent statement or answer is made herein to procure the granting of such
license.

I do solemnly swear subject to criminal penalties for false swearing, that the statements and answers made by me to the foregoing questions in this
application are true and no false or fraudulent statement or answer is made herein to procure the granting of such license.

I agree

Digital Signature (Type Name)

Urmi a raikar

Acceptance of payment by the county does not constitute �nal approval of the license application. this application is subject to all
necessary approvals. said license fee shall be refunded if �nal approval is not granted.

Non-Refundable Application Fee

$100.00

License Use Fee

$0.00



 

Business Item - 10: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
Subject: Janitorial Services Bid Results 

 
 
Summary:  

Staff has advertised for bids for Janitorial Services.  The bid opening was held on Tuesday, April 
30, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.   We received three bids.  
The county locations for services include: 

• Courthouse (126 W. Greene St.) 

• Courthouse Annex (162 N. Warren St.) 

• Southern Crescent Technical College 

Received bids were as follows: 
Take a Break Cleaning Service $159,500 

Wildlife Industries   $  60,000 

Dirt Cheap Cleaners   $225,395 

 
Background: 

The contract for current janitorial services with Wildfire Industries expires June 30, 2024, staff is 
requesting approval to bid janitorial services.  
 
Cost:   

 

Recommended Motion: 

Accept and Authorize Chairman to sign a 3-year Contract for Janitorial Services with Wildfire 

Industries in the amount of $60,000 annually; to be paid monthly at $5,000. 

  
  



 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL – JANITORIAL SERVICES 

 
 
 
To All Interested Parties: 

 

RFP# 2024.04.11 -Janitorial   Services 
 

The Jasper County Board of Commissioners is requesting proposals from qualified firms 
and/or individuals interested in providing Janitorial services for the Jasper County 
Courthouse and certain other County facilities. 

 
All interested firms and individuals may make arrangements to pick up a proposal package at 
the Jasper County Board of Commissioners Office, 126 West Greene Street, Suite 18, 
Monticello, Georgia, where proposals will be received until 10:00 A.M. ET, on Tuesday, April 
30, 2024. Bid Opening will begin at 10:00 AM.  

 
Proposals received after this time will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the 
firm or individual as a ''NO-RESPONSE". Proposals will be publicly opened at the above 
stated date and time. All interested parties are invited to attend 

 
Questions concerning proposal submittal or process should be directed to Sheila Belcher, 
County Clerk at (706) 468-4900. Copies of the proposal documents may be obtained at no 
cost. The County is not responsible for expenses incurred prior to award by the Board of 
Commissioners. Jasper County reserves the right to reject any and all 
proposals in whole or in part, and to waive any irregularities or 
informalities, whichever is in the best interest of Jasper County. 

 
Proposing firms or individuals are instructed to READ CAREFULLY all terms, conditions, 
and specifications of this proposal, and to provide all of the information requested. 

 
Responses to this REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL must be in a SEALED ENVELOPE, 
MARKED CLEARLY on the outside of the envelope, "RFP# 2024.04.11 
"JANITORIAL SERVICES". For mailing purposes, please address the proposal to 
Jasper County Board of Commissioners, "RFP# 2024.04.11 "JANITORIAL 
SERVICES" 126 West Greene Street, Suite 18, Monticello, GA, 31064. FAXED 

PROPOSALS W I L L  NOT BE ACCEPTED. 
 

Proposals may be hand delivered to the Board of Commissioners Office at the above 
address any time prior to the proposal opening on Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 
10:00 AM. 



 
RFP# 2024.04.11 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
The successful firm or individual shall provide the following janitorial service to the 
listed areas of the Jasper County Courthouse, the Courthouse Annex (Extension Service), 
and Southern Crescent (main campus building): 

 
1. Offices and Work Areas 

a. Daily- Empty and reline trash cans; Spot vacuum/sweep as needed 
b. Weekly-Thoroughly dust/polish all desks, counters, ledges, furniture, and 

cabinets; Dust corners, light fixtures and baseboards; vacuum all carpet 
2. Courtrooms and Jury Rooms 

a. Daily- Check for trash or debris; Clean prior to and after court dates as per 
schedule provided by Clerk of Superior Court  

b. Weekly - Thoroughly dust/polish all furniture, tables, podiums and chairs; 
Feather dust all corners, light fixtures and baseboards; Vacuum all carpet 

3. Conference Rooms 
a. Daily- Check for trash; Vacuum/sweep as needed; Clean tables/chairs as 

needed 
4. Classrooms (at Southern Crescent) 

a. Daily- Check for trash; Vacuum/sweep as needed; Clean desks/chairs as 
needed 

5. Restrooms 
a. Daily -Empty and reline trash cans; Clean and disinfect toilets, urinals and 

sinks; Shine fixtures and wipe down partitions; Restock supplies; Sweep and 
mop 

b. Weekly- Thoroughly clean partitions, doors, and commonly touched surfaces 
6. Kitchens and Break Rooms 

a. Daily - Empty and reline trash cans; Clean counters, sinks and faucets; 
Clean microwave oven and coffee pot; Sweep and mop 

7. Hallways/Stairways/Stairwells 
a. Daily- Empty, clean, and reline trash containers; Vacuum mats; Sweep and 

Mop 
b. Weekly- Dust mop/sweep and mop all areas; Dust ledges, banisters, 

handrails, and baseboards; Vacuum carpeted hallways, stairs, and landings 
8. Janitorial Closets 

a. Daily -Check and restock supplies; Keep supplies neatly stacked and area clean 
9. Elevators 

a. Daily-Vacuum daily 
b. Weekly- Wipe walls and buttons 

10. Entrance Walkways, Stoops, and Porches 
a. Daily - Check for trash; Sweep entrance points; Empty and reline trash cans 

and Ash urns (in designated smoking areas); Take all trash to dumpster. 
 
 

 
Note: Towels and rags used to clean and dust should only be used on single offices, after 
which they should be discarded or machine washed. Use Lysol on all high touch surfaces.



 
RFP# 2024.04.11 

 
SCOPE OF WORK (cont'd) 

 
In addition to the daily and weekly services itemized above, the successful firm or 
individual shall provide the following janitorial services on a monthly, quarterly, and 
yearly basis: 

 
Monthly 

 
1. Feather dust all blinds in all locations 

 
2. Clean and shine elevator doors 

 
3. Spot clean carpet as needed 

 
4. (Carpeted stairwell)- all handrails wiped down 

 
5. Mop Probate/ Superior Court Clerk office with vinegar water 

 
6. Water plants in the two planters at front of courthouse as needed. 

 
 
Quarterly 

 
1. Clean and shine all interior glass inside   and above doors 

 
2. Shampoo all carpets in high traffic areas (Ground Floor, Tag Office, Tax 

Assessors Office)- Every 6 weeks 
 

3. (Southern Crescent) Buff all waxed tile areas 
 

4. Wipe ceramic tile in all bathrooms 
 

 
Annually 

 
1. Strip and wax all tile floors (Southern Crescent) 

 
2. Clean all exterior windows at all locations 

 
3. Scrub all no wax floors (1st Floor & Ground Floor between bathrooms) 

 
4. Wash artificial plants 

 
5. Exterior / Interior windows at Courthouse every other year alternate years 

(i.e. exterior year one, interior year two) 
 

6. Extension Office and Southern Crescent- clean interior and exterior windows  
 



RFP# 2024.04.11 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. The contract will be for 3 years.  
2. The Jasper County Board of Commissioners reserves the right to determine if the 

services offered are of a type and quality desired. 
3. Proposals are to be on the Proposal Form furnished with this Request for Proposal, 

and must be submitted in a sealed envelope, marked as shown. 
4. If so desired, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners may request from 

any proposing firm or individual a financial statement and/or written proof that 
the firm or 
individual is operating an established business with availability of services to satisfy 
this request. 

5. If so desired, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners may request a personal 
interview with the principal representative(s) of the proposing firm or individual. 

6. By submitting a proposal, the firm or individual represents and warrants that no 
Commissioner, Officer, employee, nor any other person employed by the Jasper 
County Board of Commissioners has in any manner, an interest, directly or 
indirectly in the proposal or in the contract which may be made under it, or in any 
expected profits to arise there from. 

7. This Request for Proposal, these general terms and conditions, specifications and 
instructions to proposing firms or individuals, special conditions, proposals and 
addenda, if any, will be deemed part of the final contract. 



 
 

RFP# 2024.04.11 
 

PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

1. The successful firm or individual shall provide and perform for the County the 
services designated by the County and more fully identified in these specifications 
and/or scope of work. 

2. Except as may be otherwise specified the designated services are to be provided 
and performed Monday through Friday after 5:00 pm. 

3. The successful firm or individual shall comply with all specifications provided 
by the County as to the method by which the designated services are to be 
provided and performed. 

4. The designated services shall be provided and performed by the successful firm 
or individual using their own fuel, operating personnel and equipment. 

5. All work provided by the successful firm or individual shall be subject to periodic 
evaluation by a designated representative of the County and payment for services 
rendered shall be subject to the final approval of the County. 

6. All personnel used by the successful firm or individual will be their employee(s), 
and the successful firm or individual will pay all salaries and expenses, all Federal, 
State, and 
Social Security taxes, all Federal and State Unemployment taxes and similar 
statutory payroll taxes relating to such employment. 

7. The successful firm or individual will provide all proper safeguards and 
ensure that 
working conditions are proper for the task to be performed i n  conjunction with 
these specifications. 

8. The successful firm or individual shall assume all risks incurred  i n  performing 
t h e  services required and shall indemnify and hold harmless Jasper County as to 
any cause of 
action which should arise as a result of providing said services. 

9. The successful firm or individual shall purchase and maintain, and provide the 
County with proof of coverage, the following policies of insurance as minimum 
coverage to protect them from claims which might arise as a result of their operation 
under the scope of work: 
 

I. Workers' Compensation Insurance (minimum State Law requirements) 
II. Liability Insurance (minimum of $250,000 per event) 

 
All insurance required by this specification shall be provided by a company or 
companies licensed to do business in the State of Georgia. 
 

10. The successful firm or individual shall be responsible for the direct supervision 
of its personnel and shall be available at a reasonable time to confer with the 
County regarding services rendered. 

11. The successful firm or individual agrees to utilize qualified and reliable 
employees to perform the services which are the subject matter of these 
specifications and further agrees upon conferring with the County upon mutual 
agreement to remove any employees who are deemed to be incompetent or guilty 
of improper conduct. 



RFP# 2024.04.11 
 

1. Please describe the size of your company and give a brief history of your business. 

 

 

2. Please provide a list of at least three verifiable references for which your company provided 

a similar service. (Please include a contact name and telephone number). 

a. _________________________________________________________ 

b. _________________________________________________________ 

c. _________________________________________________________ 

3. List your proposed annual rate for the project. __________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

Company Name 

 

______________________________         ___________________________ 

Address                                                                                              Phone Number 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip 
 
_____________________________             ___________________________ 

Print Name                                                                    Date 
 
  
_______________________________________________              
Signature 
 
When signed, this proposal becomes legal and binding to 
Jasper County and is acknowledgement that all specifications  
and terms and conditions have been read and understood. 













































Business Item – 11: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
Subject: Pest Control Services Bid Results 

 
 
Summary: 

Staff has advertised for bids for Pest Control Services for the below listed county buildings.  The 
bid opening was held on Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 2:00 p.m.   PrimePest was the low bidder at a 
cost of $290 per month. 
The County Buildings to be serviced include: 
Sheriff’s Department 
Public Works 
Senior Center 
E911/EMA Building 
Recreation Department 
Landfill 
Courthouse 
County Extension (Courthouse Annex) 
Library 
Southern Crescent  
Fire Stations 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 
 
We received two bids: 

Prime Pest    $290 per month 

Know Pest Control    $315 per month 

 

Background: 

Prime Pest is our current Pest Control provider.  
Cost:  $290 monthly 
 
Recommended Motion: 

Accept the bid from PrimePest and authorize Chairman to sign a 3-year contract with PrimePest for 
$290 monthly.  
  



























Business Item 12: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Bid Results – Sale and Removal of House Only at 811 Eatonton St 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Received One Bid 
 

Elliott and Andrea Perkins  $5000.00 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

Staff published an invitation to bid for the purchase and removal of the house only at 811 Eatonton 
St, Tax Parcel # M05D 114. 
 
The Jasper County BOC is not selling the lot, just the house to be removed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 
  



















Business Item 13: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Bid Results – Truck Mounted Pothole Patching Machine 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Received Three Bids 
 
Reynolds Warren Equipment   $292,481 
Roscoe RA400 
 
Adams Equipment    $307,221 
Cimline Durapatcher P5 
 
Road Doctors     $289,000 
Custom Build - Limited Specs Provided 

 
 
Background:  

 

This project was discussed at the April 1, 2024 BOC Meeting. 
 
Staff was directed to publish an invitation to bid. 
 
 
Cost:   
 
Potential Funding Sources 
 
ARPA    $129,133 
2018 SPLOST   $38,761 
2024 SPLOST   $128,000 (approx.) - Initial revenue to be received May 31, 2024 
6-30-2023 Fund Balance $7,718,574 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 
  

































































































Business Item 14: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: GDOT Local Road Assistance Administration Funds Application - Projects 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Discussion needed to identify the remaining projects for the LRA application. 
 
Staff will bring additional road projects for BOC consideration. 
 

Applications for the LRA fund are due to GDOT by June 15, 2024. 
 
 
 
Background:  

 

The State FY 2024 Amended Budget added Local Road Assistance Administration funds for 
counties to use for road projects. Eligible activities and projects for LRA funds will be the same as 
for the LMIG program.  
 
Jasper County’s LRA allocation for FY 2024 is $801,261.06. 
 
The BOC voted at its April 1, 2024 Meeting  to approve the following projects for the LRA 
application: 
 
Resurface Whipporwill Dr 
Purchase a Truck Mounted Pothole Patching Machine if LRA funds can be used for this purpose. 
 
Staff has since determined that LRA funds can not be used for the purchase of a Truck Mounted Pot 
Hole Patching Machine. Projects for LRA funds are limited to road and bridge improvements. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
The LRA fund does not require a county match. 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 
  





Business Item 15: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Sign Ordinance – Section 111-34 – Exceptions to Permit Process – Political Signs 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Discussion requested regarding Jasper County’s sign ordinance regulating political signs. 
 
The County ordinance regulating political signs is located in Chapter 11, Section 111-34, Item 10. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

Jasper County sign ordinance is located in Chapter 11 of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 
  















Business Item 16: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

Department:  Finance  
Date:  May 6, 2024 
Subject:  FY 2024 3rd Quarter Financial Report 
 
Summary:                                                                                                                                                          
Staff will present a Financial Report for 3rd Quarter FY2024. 
 

Background:                                                                                                                                                                 

 
Cost: 
None    
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                    
None Required 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
3RD QUARTER

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

 
FUND FY 2024 FY 2024 % %

# BUDGET ACTUAL COLLECTED REMAINING
100 GENERAL FUND - 

LINE # REVENUE
1 ADVALOREM PROPERTY TAX 7,484,460$      7,380,710$    98.6% 1.4%
2 VEHICLE & MOBILE HOME TAX 1,174,011$      958,266$        81.6% 18.4%
3 PRIOR YEARS TAX 196,700$          157,784$        80.2% 19.8%
4 FOREST LAND PROTECTION GRANT 237,780$          245,445$        103.2% -3.2%
5 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 1,320,000$      1,006,853$    76.3% 23.7%
6 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 973,296$          967,801$        99.4% 0.6%
7 TAX COMISSIONER COMMISSION 259,000$          248,887$        96.1% 3.9%
8 TIMBER TAX 33,000$            15,152$          45.9% 54.1%
9 RAILROAD TAX 33,000$            34,265$          103.8% -3.8%

10 REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX 65,000$            46,941$          72.2% 27.8%
11 INTANGIBLE TAX 190,000$          116,249$        61.2% 38.8%
12 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX 76,000$            48,347$          63.6% 36.4%
13 BUSINESS LICENSE TAX 27,000$            35,176$          130.3% -30.3%
14 ENERGY EXCISE TAX 27,000$            21,853$          80.9% 19.1%
15 OTHER TAXES 900$                  655$                72.8% 27.2%
16 PENALTIES & INTEREST 88,500$            74,771$          84.5% 15.5%
17 EMS 507,050$          385,851$        76.1% 23.9%
18 PROBATE COURT 195,000$          185,842$        95.3% 4.7%
19 MAGISTRATE COURT 3,077$            100.0%
20 SUPERIOR COURT 177,000$          151,611$        85.7% 14.3%
21 SHERIFF 45,000$            -$                     0.0% 100.0%
22 JAIL 13,000$            7,904$            60.8% 39.2%
23 RECREATION 62,400$            73,975$          118.6% -18.6%
24 PLANNING & ZONING 271,100$          191,836$        70.8% 29.2%
25 EMA 7,355$              1,618,085$    
26 ANIMAL CONTROL 2,200$              1,404$            63.8% 36.2%
27 FIRE DISTRICT - JCWSA 49,000$            55,454$          113.2% -13.2%
28 FOREST WILDLIFE GRANT 45,000$            -$                     0.0% 100.0%
29 INTEREST 210,008$          218,412$        104.0% -4.0%
30 OTHER REVENUE 62,055$            346,208$        
31 SENIOR CENTER 187,160$          144,329$        77.1% 22.9%
32 TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 14,018,975$    14,743,144$  105.2% -5.2%

FY 2024 FY 2024 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
33 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,181,701$      1,701,048$    78.0% 22.0%
34 200 JUDICIAL 1,010,526$      774,704$        76.7% 23.3%
35 300 PUBLIC SAFETY 6,180,608$      4,829,954$    78.1% 21.9%
36 400 PUBLIC WORKS 2,308,272$      1,776,035$    76.9% 23.1%
37 600 CULTURE/RECREATION 717,528$          530,907$        74.0% 26.0%
38 700 HOUSING & DEVELOPMENT 404,676$          214,655$        53.0% 47.0%
39 900 APPROPRIATIONS 350,436$          263,944$        75.3% 24.7%
40 950 COMPONENT UNITS 855,420$          540,456$        63.2% 36.8%
41 TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 14,009,167$    10,631,702$  75.9% 24.1%



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
3RD QUARTER 

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

FY 2024 FY 2024 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
LINE # 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT-

41 01110 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 341,113$      284,194$        83.3% 16.7%
42 01300 EXECUTIVE 220,775$      125,456$        56.8% 43.2%
43 01400 ELECTIONS 71,935$        32,847$          45.7% 54.3%
44 01401 REGISTRAR 104,101$      59,302$          57.0% 43.0%
45 01510 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 256,225$      187,877$        73.3% 26.7%
46 01540 HUMAN RESOURCES 104,830$      111,771$        106.6% -6.6%
47 01545 TAX COMMISSIONER 275,497$      209,262$        76.0% 24.0%
48 01150 TAX ASSESSOR 341,973$      270,501$        79.1% 20.9%
49 01565 GOV'T BUILDINGS 163,318$      186,705$        114.3% -14.3%
50 80000 DEBT SERVICE 301,934$      233,131$        77.2% 22.8%
51 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,181,701$  1,701,048$     78.0% 22.0%

200 JUDICIAL-
52 02150 SUPERIOR COURT 460,144$      356,265$        77.4% 22.6%
53 02200 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 60,493$        43,752$          72.3% 27.7%
54 02400 MAGISTRATE COURT 145,215$      121,940$        84.0% 16.0%
55 02450 PROBATE COURT 213,264$      160,227$        75.1% 24.9%
56 02600 JUVENILE COURT 4,000$          1,819$             45.5% 54.5%
57 03100 COURTS: OTHER COSTS 127,410$      90,701$          71.2% 28.8%
58 TOTAL JUDICIAL 1,010,526$  774,704$        76.7% 23.3%

300 PUBLIC SAFETY-
59 03300 SHERIFF 2,984,851$  2,117,582$     70.9% 29.1%
60 03326 JAIL 1,243,696$  818,417$        65.8% 34.2%
61 03360 COURTHOUSE SECURITY 137,385$      79,327$          57.7% 42.3%
62 03550 FIRE RESCUE 1,578,680$  1,238,119$     78.4% 21.6%
63 03700 CORONER 39,099$        21,378$          54.7% 45.3%
64 03900 ANIMAL CONTROL 180,447$      145,634$        80.7% 19.3%
65 03920 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 16,450$        409,496$        
66 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 6,180,608$  4,829,954$     78.1% 21.9%

67 400 PUBLIC WORKS-ROADS AND BRIDGES 2,308,272$  1,776,035$     76.9% 23.1%

600 CULTURE/RECREATION-
68 06100 RECREATION- 366,222$      234,763$        64.1% 35.9%
69 06200 SENIOR CENTER 351,306$      296,144$        84.3% 15.7%
70 TOTAL CULTURE/RECREATION 717,528$      530,907$        74.0% 26.0%

700 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT-
71 07100 COUNTY EXTENSION SERVICE 73,509$        37,023$          50.4% 49.6%
72 07410 PLANNING AND ZONING 331,167$      177,632$        53.6% 46.4%
73 TOTAL HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT 404,676$      214,655$        53.0% 47.0%



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
3RD QUARTER 

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

FY 2024 FY 2024 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
900 APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY-

74 572030 DEPT OF FAMILY AND CHILDRENS SERVICES 10,375$            7,781$                75.0% 25.0%
75 572060 CONSERVATION 3,000$              2,250$                75.0% 25.0%
76 572070 JC BOARD OF EDUCATION 34,000$            27,073$             79.6% 20.4%
77 572080 PUTNAM-JASPER SUPPORT SERVICES 5,760$              3,840$                66.7% 33.3%
78 572100 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY 103,600$          69,067$             66.7% 33.3%
79 572101 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY - 2% LOST 26,400$            20,137$             76.3% 23.7%
80 572110 GA FORESTRY 15,876$            15,876$             100.0% 0.0%
81 572179 FAMILY CONNECTION 8,500$              38,812$             
82 572190 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 44,000$            29,333$             66.7% 33.3%
83 573000 JCSWA 42,900$            42,900$             100.0% 0.0%
84 574000 CITY OF MONTICELLO EXCISE TAX -$                       6,124$                
85 575000 CITY OF SHADY DALE EXCISE TAX -$                       750$                   
86 579000 CONTINGENCY & PAYROLL CONTINGENCY 56,025$            -$                        
87 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY 350,436$          263,944$           75.3% 24.7%

950 COMPONENT UNITS-
88 611200 JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 72,102$            54,077$             75.0% 25.0%
89 611300 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 111,413$          83,560$             75.0% 25.0%
90 611400 E911 JOINT COUNTY AUTHORITY 537,092$          402,820$           75.0% 25.0%
91 612540 TRANSFER TO LANDFILL 148,915$          -$                        0.0% 100.0%
92 618000 TRANSFER FROM CURBSIDE (14,102)$           -$                        0.0% 100.0%
93 TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS 855,420$          540,456$           63.2% 36.8%



Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commisioners 
 
Date:   May 6, 2024 
 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
   
 
 
Summary:  

 

Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
Background:  

 

Work Sessions are scheduled as follows: 
 
Friday, May 10 9:00 A.M. FY 2025 Budget 
Monday, May 13 6:00 P.M. Monticello Square Traffic - Joint Work Session with Monticello  
     City Council 
Friday, May 17 9:00 A.M. FY 2025 Budget 
Friday, May 24 9:00 A.M. FY 2025 Budget 
Friday, May 31 9:00 A.M. FY 2025 Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 


